



# PROPOSED RULE MAKING

**CR-102 (June 2024)**  
**(Implements RCW 34.05.320)**  
Do NOT use for expedited rule making

CODE REVISER USE ONLY

OFFICE OF THE CODE REVISER  
STATE OF WASHINGTON  
FILED

DATE: October 02, 2024

TIME: 11:07 AM

WSR 24-20-146

Agency: Department of Natural Resources

Original Notice

Supplemental Notice to WSR \_\_\_\_\_

Continuance of WSR \_\_\_\_\_

Preproposal Statement of Inquiry was filed as WSR 23-09-046 ; or

Expedited Rule Making--Proposed notice was filed as WSR \_\_\_\_\_; or

Proposal is exempt under RCW 34.05.310(4) or 34.05.330(1); or

Proposal is exempt under RCW \_\_\_\_\_.

Title of rule and other identifying information: (describe subject) 332-30-106- Definitions; 332-30-138 Commercial finfish net pen aquaculture

Hearing location(s):

Date:	Time:	Location: (be specific)	Comment:
November 7, 2024	5:00 PM – 7:00 PM	Natural Resources Building Room 172 1111 Washington St SE Olympia, WA 98504	

Date of intended adoption: 12/3/2024 (Note: This is NOT the effective date)

Submit written comments to:

Name Noel Sharp, DNR Aquatics

Address 1111 Washington St SE; MS: 47027

Email netpens@dnr.wa.gov

Fax 360-902-1081

Other (PREFERRED METHOD) Smart Comment:

<https://wadnr.commentinput.com?id=HdVJB8bZ5>

Beginning (date and time) 10/16/2024 8:00 AM PST

By (date and time) 11/07/2024 11:59 PM PST

Assistance for persons with disabilities:

Contact

Phone

Fax

TTY

Email

Other

By (date) \_\_\_\_\_

**Purpose of the proposal and its anticipated effects, including any changes in existing rules:** DNR intends to add a new section to 332-30 WAC and amend 332-30-106 WAC to better achieve the department's management guidelines with respect to commercial finfish net pen aquaculture. The proposed rule language would bar any future commercial finfish net pen aquaculture uses on DNR managed, state-owned aquatic lands.

**Reasons supporting proposal:** The proposed rule language reflects DNR's management responsibilities and objectives regarding DNR managed state-owned aquatic lands. This rule will make DNR's management more consistent with neighboring states and countries. Finfish net pen farming is prohibited in Alaska, Oregon, and California and open water salmon net pen aquaculture will be prohibited in Canada by June 30, 2029.

The proposed rule language addresses, among other things, the department's environmental concerns such as degradation of the benthic environment, biofouling, and additional ecological impacts to aquatic habitat in relation to commercial finfish net pen aquaculture operations on state-owned aquatic land. DNR has focused its review on potential stressors that may result from commercial finfish net pen aquaculture operations to the habitat the agency is specifically charged with managing and conserving for future generations.

- **Habitats and Habitat Elements**

- o Native aquatic vegetation - eelgrass beds, kelp forests, and other macroalgae - are recognized for their ecological, economic, and sociocultural values. Macroalgae can range from the intertidal to 30m depth (e.g., crustose corallines).

- Benthic sediments foster a high diversity of macro and micro invertebrates which are critical for the storage and cycling of organic matter and carbon - forming the base of many food chains. Macro invertebrates such as octocorals, gorgonians, and sea pens function as highly rugose habitat in deeper waters (e.g., the cloud sponge ranges from 10m to 1600m depth). These sediment dwelling species are sensitive to changes in sediment and water quality.
- Shellfish habitats and harvest areas contribute a suite of ecological services including provisioning important biogenic nursery habitat, the cycling of nutrients, filtering of pathogens, maintenance of water quality, carbon sequestration, and shoreline stability.

#### - Effluent

- CFNPA effluent is predominantly organic, largely arising from fish feed and its byproducts (e.g., uneaten feed, ingested but undigested feed, and digested feed excreted to the environment); biofouling material falling off the nets; and fish carcasses<sup>1</sup>. Periodic treatment of sea lice can lead to circulation of the pesticide through the surrounding environment, and therapeutics such as antibiotics can also circulate beyond the net pen. Trace metals such as zinc and copper have been found up to 150m from former CFNPA facilities in Canada<sup>2</sup>.
- Beneath and proximal to CFNPA facilities, impacts to benthic communities include increased oxygen demand and resulting lower-oxygen conditions, reduced species diversity, increased tissue necrosis, the accumulation of sometimes lethal levels of phytotoxic sulfides in the root zones where aquatic vegetation resides, and shifts in bacterial communities. Climate change impacts such as events of increased water temperature, decreased pH, and decreased dissolved oxygen may lead to greater cumulative effects by posing additional stressors to benthic communities.
- The impact of a CFNPA effluent on benthic communities depends on loading (number and density of fish leading to the quantity and concentration of organic matter deposited); water depth and current velocity (greater dispersion in deeper and faster waters); pen configuration (orientation to current and relative location of pens can impact dispersion); feed type (different settling rates and digestibility); and the composition of the benthic community beneath the farm (more diverse and productive communities may assimilate waste products more readily but also may experience more impacts)<sup>3-5</sup>.

#### - Marine Debris

- CFNPA can produce marine debris, including plastics from sources such as floating collars or handrails; collar floatation; buoys from mooring systems; ropes from mooring systems; net enclosures; predator nets; and feeding systems.
- The impact of marine debris from CFNPA operations on benthic communities depends on exposure to storm or high wave events (which may increase in frequency and/or severity with climate change), waste management practices (methods to reduce waste and to recognize release, and to subsequently respond to that release), installation maintenance (to prevent wear and failure), and/or debris survey methods during the closure of a facility (to ensure any associated debris from the structure is removed)<sup>4-6</sup>.

#### References

1. Kalantzi, I. & Karakassis, I. Benthic impacts of fish farming: Meta-analysis of community and geochemical data. *Mar. Pollut. Bull.* **52**, 484–493 (2006).
2. Hamoutene, D. *et al.* Assessing trace-elements as indicators of marine finfish aquaculture across three distinct Canadian coastal regions. *Mar. Pollut. Bull.* **169**, 112557 (2021).
3. Parametrix. *Final Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement Fish Culture in Floating Net Pens*. <https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/documents/1206019.pdf> (1990).
4. Washington State Department of Ecology. *Commercial Marine Finfish Net Pen Aquaculture in Puget Sound and Strait of Juan de Fuca*. <https://apps.ecology.wa.gov/publications/documents/2206008.pdf> (2022).
5. Hawkins, J. L., Bath, G. B., Dickhoff, W. W. & Morris, J. A. State of Science on Net Pen Aquaculture in Puget Sound Washington.pdf. (2019).
6. Huntington, T. *Marine Litter and Aquaculture Gear – White Paper. Report Produced by Poseidon Aquatic Resources Management Ltd for the Aquaculture Stewardship Council*. 20 (2019).

**Statutory authority for adoption:** The management philosophy the department follows regarding state-owned aquatic lands is described generally in RCW 79.105.010 where the legislative intent of the Aquatic Lands Act is outlined. In RCW 79.105.030, specific management guidelines for providing a balance of public benefits for all citizens of the state are given including: Encouraging direct public use and access; fostering water-dependent uses; ensuring environmental protection; utilizing renewable resources; and generating revenue consistent with the above. Pursuant to RCW 79.105.360, DNR shall adopt rules as are necessary to carry out the purposes of RCW 79.105.010, 79.105.030, and other certain aquatic land statutes. In addition, to effectively carry out these management directives, RCW 43.30.540 specifically authorizes the Board of Natural Resources to make and enforce rules and regulations to carry out the provisions of chapters 79.105 through 79.140 RCW.

**Statute being implemented:** RCW 43.30.540 and RCW 79.105.360

**Is rule necessary because of a:**

Federal Law?  Yes  No

Federal Court Decision?  Yes  No

State Court Decision?  Yes  No

If yes, CITATION:

**Agency comments or recommendations, if any, as to statutory language, implementation, enforcement, and fiscal matters:**

**Name of proponent:** (person or organization) Department of Natural Resources, Aquatic Resources Division  
**Type of proponent:**  Private.  Public.  Governmental.

**Name of agency personnel responsible for:**

	Name	Office Location	Phone
Drafting	Michal Rechner	Olympia, WA	360-902-1100
Implementation	Thomas Gorman	Olympia, WA	360-902-1100
Enforcement	Commissioner of Public Lands	Olympia, WA	360-902-1000

**Is a school district fiscal impact statement required under [RCW 28A.305.135](#)?**  Yes  No

If yes, insert statement here:

The public may obtain a copy of the school district fiscal impact statement by contacting:

Name  
Address  
Phone  
Fax  
TTY  
Email  
Other

**Is a cost-benefit analysis required under [RCW 34.05.328](#)?**

Yes: A preliminary cost-benefit analysis may be obtained by contacting:  
Name Noel Sharp  
Address 1111 Washington St SE; MS: 47027  
Phone 360-995-2496  
Fax 360-902-1081  
TTY  
Email netpens@dnr.wa.gov  
Other

~~No: Please explain: DNR has opted to conduct a preliminary cost-benefit analysis despite~~ No: Please explain:

**Regulatory Fairness Act and Small Business Economic Impact Statement**  
Note: The [Governor's Office for Regulatory Innovation and Assistance \(ORIA\)](#) provides support in completing this part.

**(1) Identification of exemptions:**  
This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, **may be exempt** from requirements of the Regulatory Fairness Act (see [chapter 19.85 RCW](#)). For additional information on exemptions, consult the [exemption guide published by ORIA](#). Please check the box for any applicable exemption(s):

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under [RCW 19.85.061](#) because this rule making is being adopted solely to conform and/or comply with federal statute or regulations. Please cite the specific federal statute or regulation this rule is being adopted to conform or comply with, and describe the consequences to the state if the rule is not adopted.  
Citation and description:

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt because the agency has completed the pilot rule process defined by [RCW 34.05.313](#) before filing the notice of this proposed rule.

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under the provisions of [RCW 15.65.570\(2\)](#) because it was adopted by a referendum.

- This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under [RCW 19.85.025\(3\)](#). Check all that apply:
- |                                                                                                   |                                                                                                                                                                                   |
|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| <input type="checkbox"/> <a href="#">RCW 34.05.310</a> (4)(b)<br>(Internal government operations) | <input type="checkbox"/> <a href="#">RCW 34.05.310</a> (4)(e)<br>(Dictated by statute)                                                                                            |
| <input type="checkbox"/> <a href="#">RCW 34.05.310</a> (4)(c)<br>(Incorporation by reference)     | <input type="checkbox"/> <a href="#">RCW 34.05.310</a> (4)(f)<br>(Set or adjust fees)                                                                                             |
| <input type="checkbox"/> <a href="#">RCW 34.05.310</a> (4)(d)<br>(Correct or clarify language)    | <input type="checkbox"/> <a href="#">RCW 34.05.310</a> (4)(g)<br>(i) Relating to agency hearings; or (ii) process requirements for applying to an agency for a license or permit) |

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under [RCW 19.85.025\(4\)](#). (Does not affect small businesses).

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under RCW \_\_\_\_\_.

Explanation of how the above exemption(s) applies to the proposed rule: There are no commercial finfish net pen aquaculture operations on state-owned aquatic lands, so this proposed rule language does not impact small businesses.

**(2) Scope of exemptions:** *Check one.*

- The rule proposal: Is fully exempt. (*Skip section 3.*) Exemptions identified above apply to all portions of the rule proposal.
- The rule proposal: Is partially exempt. (*Complete section 3.*) The exemptions identified above apply to portions of the rule proposal, but less than the entire rule proposal. Provide details here (consider using [this template from ORIA](#)):
- The rule proposal: Is not exempt. (*Complete section 3.*) No exemptions were identified above.

**(3) Small business economic impact statement:** *Complete this section if any portion is not exempt.*

If any portion of the proposed rule is **not exempt**, does it impose more-than-minor costs (as defined by RCW 19.85.020(2)) on businesses?

- No Briefly summarize the agency's minor cost analysis and how the agency determined the proposed rule did not impose more-than-minor costs. DNR completed a Small Business Economic Impact Statement that identified no impacts to small businesses. There are no commercial finfish net pen aquaculture operations on state-owned aquatic lands, so this proposed rule language could not impact small businesses.
- Yes Calculations show the rule proposal likely imposes more-than-minor cost to businesses and a small business economic impact statement is required. Insert the required small business economic impact statement here:

The public may obtain a copy of the small business economic impact statement or the detailed cost calculations by contacting:

Name Noel Sharp  
 Address 1111 Washington St SE; MS 47027  
 Phone 360-995-2496  
 Fax 360-902-1081  
 TTY  
 Email netpens@dnr.wa.gov  
 Other

**Date:** 10/02/2024

**Name:** Thomas Gorman

**Title:** Division Manager

**Signature:**



**WAC 332-30-106 Definitions.** All definitions in this section shall apply to the department and to port districts managing aquatic lands under a management agreement (WAC 332-30-114). For the purpose of this chapter:

(1) "Accretion" means the natural buildup of shoreline through the gradual deposit of alluvium. The general principle of common law applicable is that a riparian or littoral owner gains by accretion and reliction, and loses by erosion. Boundary lines generally will change with accretion.

(2) "Alluvium" means material deposited by water on the bed or shores.

(3) "Anniversary date" means the month and day of the start date of an authorization instrument unless otherwise specified in the instrument.

(4) "Aquaculture" means the culture and/or farming of food fish, shellfish, and other aquatic plants and animals in fresh water, brackish water or salt water areas. Aquaculture practices may include, but are not limited to, hatching, seeding or planting, cultivating, feeding, raising, harvesting of planted crops or of natural crops so as to maintain an optimum yield, and processing of aquatic plants or animals.

(5) "Aquatic lands" means all state-owned tidelands, shorelands, harbor areas, and the beds of navigable waters (RCW 79.105.060(1)). Aquatic lands are part of the public lands of the state of Washington (see subsection ~~((+51+))~~ (52) of this section). Included in aquatic lands are public places subsection ~~((+53+))~~ (54) of this section, waterways subsection ~~((+78+))~~ (79) of this section, bar islands, avulsively abandoned beds and channels of navigable bodies of water, managed by the department of natural resources directly, or indirectly through management agreements with other governmental entities.

(6) "Aquatic land use classes" means classes of uses of tideland, shorelands and beds of navigable waters that display varying degrees of water dependency. (~~See WAC 332-30-121.~~)

(7) "Authorization instrument" means a lease, material purchase, easement, permit, or other document authorizing use of state-owned aquatic lands and/or materials.

(8) "Avulsion" means a sudden and perceptible change in the shoreline of a body of water. Generally no change in boundary lines occurs.

(9) "Beds of navigable waters" means those submerged lands lying waterward of the line of extreme low tide in navigable tidal waters and waterward of the line of navigability in navigable lakes, rivers and streams. The term, "bedlands" means beds of navigable waters.

(10) "Commerce" means the exchange or buying and selling of goods and services. As it applies to aquatic land, commerce usually involves transport and a land/water interface.

(11) "Commercial finfish net pen aquaculture" means a system of nets, cages, or other containment systems in open water used to cultivate, feed, and raise "finfish" (as defined in WAC 220-370-050(3)) to marketable size for the purpose of harvesting and selling the same as a crop. Commercial finfish net pen aquaculture does not include operations and containment systems used to raise finfish for open-water re-

lease or used to raise finfish solely for tribal ceremonial and subsistence uses.

~~((12))~~ (12) "Covered moorage" means slips and mooring floats that are covered by a single roof with no dividing walls.

~~((12))~~ (13) "Department" means the department of natural resources.

~~((13))~~ (14) "Dredging" means enlarging or cleaning out a river channel, harbor, etc.

~~((14))~~ (15) "Educational reserves" means accessible areas of aquatic lands typical of selected habitat types which are suitable for educational projects.

~~((15))~~ (16) "Enclosed moorage" means moorage that has completely enclosed roof, side and end walls similar to a car garage i.e., boathouse.

~~((16))~~ (17) "Environmental reserves" means areas of environmental importance, sites established for the continuance of environmental baseline monitoring, and/or areas of historical, geological or biological interest requiring special protective management.

~~((17))~~ (18) "Erosion" means the gradual cutting away of a shore by natural processes. Title is generally lost by erosion, just as it is gained by accretion.

~~((18))~~ (19) "Extreme low tide" means the line as estimated by the federal government below which it might reasonably be expected that the tide would not ebb. In Puget Sound area generally, this point is estimated by the federal government to be a point in elevation 4.50 feet below the datum plane of mean lower low water, (0.0). Along the Pacific Ocean and in the bays fronting thereon and the Strait of Juan due Fuca, the elevation ranges down to a minus 3.5 feet in several locations.

~~((19))~~ (20) "Fair market value" means the amount of money which a purchaser willing, but not obligated, to buy the property would pay an owner willing, but not obligated, to sell it, taking into consideration all uses to which the property is adapted and might in reason be applied (*Donaldson v. Greenwood*, 40 Wn.2d 238, 1952). Such uses must be consistent with applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations affecting the property as of the date of valuation.

~~((20))~~ (21) "First class shorelands" means the shores of a navigable lake or river belonging to the state not subject to tidal flow, lying between the line of ordinary high water and the line of navigability, or the inner harbor line where established and within or in front of the corporate limits of any city, or within two miles thereof upon either side (RCW 79.105.060(3)). These boundary descriptions represent the general rule; however exceptions do exist. To determine if the shorelands are within two miles of the corporate limits of a city, the distance is measured along the shoreline from the intersection of the corporate limit with the shoreline.

~~((21))~~ (22) "First class tidelands" means the shores of navigable tidal waters belonging to the state lying within or in front of the corporate limits of any city, or within one mile thereof upon either side and between the line of ordinary high tide and the inner harbor line; and within two miles of the corporate limits on either side and between the line of ordinary high tide and the line of extreme low tide (RCW 79.105.060(4)). In general, the line of ordinary high tide is the landward boundary. The line of extreme low tide, or the inner harbor line where established, is the waterward boundary. To determine if the tidelands are within two miles of the corporate lim-

its of a city, the distance is measured along the shoreline from the intersection of the corporate limit with the shoreline.

~~((22))~~ (23) "Fiscal year" means a period of time commencing on the first day of July and ending on the ~~((thirtieth))~~ 30th day of June of the succeeding year. A fiscal year is identified by the year in which it ends, e.g., fiscal year 1985 is the period July 1, 1984, through June 30, 1985.

~~((23))~~ (24) "Floating house" means any floating structure that is designed, or has been substantially and structurally remodeled or redesigned, to serve primarily as a residence. "Floating houses" include house boats, house barges, or any floating structures that serve primarily as a residence and do not qualify as a vessel as provided in subsection ~~((74))~~ (75) of this section. A floating structure that is used as a residence and is capable of navigation, but is not designed primarily for navigation, nor normally is capable of self propulsion and use as a means of transportation is a floating house, not a vessel.

~~((24))~~ (25) "Governmental entity" means the federal government, the state, county, city, port district, or other municipal corporation or political subdivision thereof.

~~((25))~~ (26) "Harbor area" means the area of navigable waters determined as provided in section 1 of Article XV of the state Constitution which shall be forever reserved for landings, wharves, streets, and other conveniences of navigation and commerce (RCW 79.105.060(5)). Harbor areas exist between the inner and outer harbor lines as established by the state harbor line commission.

~~((26))~~ (27) "Harbor area use classes" means classes of uses of harbor areas that display varying degrees of conformance to the purpose for which harbor areas were established under the Constitution.

~~((27))~~ (28) "Harbor line" means either or both:

(a) A line (outer harbor line) located and established in navigable waters as provided for in section 1 of Article XV of the state Constitution beyond which the state shall never sell or lease any rights whatever to private persons (RCW 79.105.060(12)).

(b) A line (inner harbor line) located and established in navigable waters between the line of ordinary high tide and the outer harbor line, constituting the inner boundary of the harbor area (RCW 79.105.060(8)).

~~((28))~~ (29) "Inflation rate" means, for a given year, the percentage rate of change in the previous calendar year's all commodity producer price index of the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States department of commerce (RCW 79.105.060(7)). The rate published by the bureau during May of each year for the previous calendar year shall be the rate for the previous calendar year.

~~((29))~~ (30) "Interest rate" shall be ~~((twelve))~~ 12 percent per annum (RCW 43.17.240).

~~((30))~~ (31) "Interim uses" means certain uses which may, under special circumstances, be allowed to locate in harbor areas (see WAC 332-30-115(5)).

~~((31))~~ (32) "Inventory" means both a compilation of existing data on man's uses, and the biology and geology of aquatic lands as well as the gathering of new information on aquatic lands through field and laboratory analysis. Such data is usually presented in map form such as the *Washington Marine Atlas*.

~~((32))~~ (33) "Island" means a body of land entirely and customarily surrounded by water. Land in navigable waters which is only surrounded by water in times of high water, is not an island within the

rule that the state takes title to newly formed islands in navigable waters.

~~((33))~~ (34) "Line of navigability" means a measured line at that depth sufficient for ordinary navigation as determined by the board of natural resources for the body of water in question.

~~((34))~~ (35) "Log booming" means placing logs into and taking them out of the water, assembling and disassembling log rafts before or after their movement in water-borne commerce, related handling and sorting activities taking place in the water, and the temporary holding of logs to be taken directly into a processing facility (RCW 79.105.060(9)).

~~((35))~~ (36) "Log storage" means the water storage of logs in rafts or otherwise prepared for shipment in water-borne commerce, but does not include the temporary holding of logs to be taken directly into a vessel or processing facility (RCW 79.105.060(10)).

~~((36))~~ (37) "Marine land" means those lands from the mean high tide mark waterward in marine and estuarine waters, including intertidal and submerged lands. Marine lands represents a portion of aquatic lands.

~~((37))~~ (38) "Meander line" means fixed determinable lines run by the federal government along the banks of all navigable bodies of water and other important rivers and lakes for the purpose of defining the sinuosities of the shore or bank and as a means of ascertaining the areas of fractional subdivisions of the public lands bordering thereon.

~~((38))~~ (39) "Moorage facility" means a marina, open water moorage and anchorage area, pier, dock, mooring buoy, or any other similar fixed moorage site.

~~((39))~~ (40) "Motorized vehicular travel" means movement by any type of motorized equipment over land surfaces.

~~((40))~~ (41) "Multiple use management" means a management philosophy which seeks to insure that several uses or activities can occur at the same place at the same time. The mechanism involves identification of the primary use of the land with provisions such as performance standards to permit compatible secondary uses to occur.

~~((41))~~ (42) "Navigability or navigable" means that a body of water is capable or susceptible of having been or being used for the transport of useful commerce. The state of Washington considers all bodies of water meandered by government surveyors as navigable unless otherwise declared by a court.

~~((42))~~ (43) "Navigation" means the movement of vessels to and from piers and wharves.

~~((43))~~ (44) "Nonwater-dependent use" means a use that can operate in a location other than on the waterfront. Examples include, but are not limited to, hotels, condominiums, apartments, restaurants, retail stores, and warehouses not part of a marine terminal or transfer facility (RCW 79.105.060(11)).

~~((44))~~ (45) "Open moorage" means moorage slips and mooring floats that have completely open sides and tops.

~~((45))~~ (46) "Open water moorage and anchorage areas" are areas of state-owned aquatic lands leased for moorage and anchorage that do not abut uplands and do not include a built connection to the uplands. They are generally in the center of a waterbody, to provide moorage in addition to any marinas and docks along the edge of the waterbody. They may contain mooring buoys, floating moorage docks, other moorage facilities not connected to the shoreline, and/or anchorage areas, as determined by the lessee and approved by the department. These areas



are leased in accordance with WAC 332-30-139(5) and subject to the restrictions therein.

~~((46))~~ (47) "Optimum yield" means the yield which provides the greatest benefit to the state with particular reference to food production and is prescribed on the basis of the maximum sustainable yield over the statewide resource base as modified by any relevant economic, social or ecological factor.

~~((47))~~ (48) "Ordinary high tide" means the same as mean high tide or the average height of high tide. In Puget Sound, the mean high tide line varies from 10 to 13 feet above the datum plane of mean lower low water (0.0).

~~((48))~~ (49) "Ordinary high water" means, for the purpose of asserting state ownership, the line of permanent upland vegetation along the shores of nontidal navigable waters. In the absence of vegetation, it is the line of mean high water.

~~((49))~~ (50) "Port district" means a port district created under Title 53 RCW (RCW 79.105.060(14)).

~~((50))~~ (51) "Public benefit" means that all of the citizens of the state may derive a direct benefit from departmental actions in the form of environmental protection; energy and mineral production; utilization of renewable resources; promotion of navigation and commerce by fostering water-dependent uses; and encouraging direct public use and access; and generating revenue in a manner consistent with RCW 79.105.030.

~~((51))~~ (52) "Public lands" means lands belonging to or held in trust by the state, which are not devoted to or reserved for a particular use by law, and include state lands, tidelands, shorelands and harbor areas as herein defined, and the beds of navigable waters belonging to the state (RCW 79.02.010).

~~((52))~~ (53) "Public interest" means....(reserved).

~~((53))~~ (54) "Public place" means a part of aquatic lands set aside for public access through platted tidelands, shorelands, and/or harbor areas to the beds of navigable waters.

~~((54))~~ (55) "Public tidelands" means tidelands belonging to and held in public trust by the state for the citizens of the state, which are not devoted to or reserved for a particular use by law.

~~((55))~~ (56) "Public trust" means that certain state-owned tidelands, shorelands and all beds of navigable waters are held in trust by the state for all citizens with each citizen having an equal and undivided interest in the land. The department has the responsibility to manage these lands in the best interest of the general public.

~~((56))~~ (57) "Public use" means to be made available daily to the general public on a first-come, first-served basis, and may not be leased to private parties on any more than a day use basis.

~~((57))~~ (58) "Public use beach" means a state-owned beach available for free public use but which may be leased for other compatible uses.

~~((58))~~ (59) "Public utility line" means pipes, conduits, and similar facilities for distribution of water, electricity, natural gas, telephone, other electronic communication, and sewers, including sewer outfall lines (RCW 79.105.060(15)).

~~((59))~~ (60) "Real rate of return" means the average for the most recent ~~((ten))~~ 10 calendar years of the average rate of return on conventional real property mortgages as reported by the Federal Home Loan Bank Board or any successor agency, minus the average inflation rate for the most recent ~~((ten))~~ 10 calendar years (RCW 79.105.060(16)).

~~((+60))~~ (61) "Reliction" means the gradual withdrawal of water from a shoreline leaving the land uncovered. Boundaries usually change with reliction.

~~((+61))~~ (62) "Renewable resource" means a natural resource which through natural ecological processes is capable of renewing itself.

~~((+62))~~ (63) "Residential use" means any noncommercial habitation of:

(a) A floating house, as defined in WAC 332-30-106(23); or

(b) A vessel, as defined in WAC 332-30-106(74), when any one of the following applies:

(i) Any person or succession of different persons resides on the vessel in a specific location, and/or in the same area on more than a total of ~~((thirty))~~ 30 days in any ~~((forty))~~ 40-day period or on more than a total of ~~((ninety))~~ 90 days in any ~~((three hundred sixty five))~~ 365-day period. "In the same area" means within a radius of one mile of any location where the same vessel previously moored or anchored on state-owned aquatic lands. A vessel that is occupied and is moored or anchored in the same area, but not for the number of days described in this subsection, is considered used as a recreational or transient vessel;

(ii) The city or county jurisdiction, through local ordinance or policy, defines the use as a residential use or identifies the occupant of the vessel as a resident of the vessel or of the facility where it is moored;

(iii) The operator of the facility where the vessel is moored, through the moorage agreement, billing statement, or facility rules, defines the use as a residential use or identifies the occupant of the vessel as a resident of the vessel or of the facility; or

(iv) The occupant or occupants identify the vessel or the facility where it is moored as their residence for voting, mail, tax, or similar purposes.

~~((+63))~~ (64) "Riparian" means relating to or living or located on the bank of a natural water course, such as a stream, lake or tide-water.

~~((+64))~~ (65) "Scientific reserves" means sites set aside for scientific research projects and/or areas of unusually rich plant and animal communities suitable for continuing scientific observation.

~~((+65))~~ (66) "Second class shorelands" means the shores of a navigable lake or river belonging to the state, not subject to tidal flow, lying between the line of ordinary high water and the line of navigability, and more than two miles from the corporate limits of any city (RCW 79.105.060(17)). These boundary definitions represent the general rule; however, exceptions do exist. To determine if shorelands are more than two miles from the corporate limits of a city, the distance is measured along the shoreline from the intersection of the corporate limit with the shoreline.

~~((+66))~~ (67) "Second class tidelands" means the shores of navigable tidal waters belonging to the state, lying outside of and more than two miles from the corporate limits of any city and between the line of ordinary high tide and the line of extreme low tide (RCW 79.105.060(18)). In general, the line of ordinary high tide is the landward boundary. The line of extreme low tide is the waterward boundary. To determine if the tidelands are more than two miles from the corporate limits of a city, the distance is measured along the shoreline from the intersection of the corporate limit with the shoreline.

((+67+)) (68) "Shore" means that space of land which is alternately covered and left dry by the rising and falling of the water level of a lake, river or tidal area.

((+68+)) (69) "State-owned aquatic lands" means those aquatic lands and waterways administered by the department of natural resources or managed under department agreement by a port district. "State-owned aquatic lands" does not include aquatic lands owned in fee by, or withdrawn for the use of, state agencies other than the department of natural resources (RCW 79.105.060(20)).

((+69+)) (70) "Statewide value." The term statewide value applies to aquatic land uses and natural resources whose use, management, or intrinsic nature have statewide implications. Such uses and resources may be either localized or distributed statewide. Aquatic land uses of statewide value provide major statewide public benefits. Public use and access, renewable resource use and water-dependent use have been cited by the legislature as examples of such uses. Aquatic land natural resources of statewide value are those critical or uniquely suited to aquatic land uses of statewide value or to environmental quality. For example, wild and scenic rivers, high quality public use beaches and aquatic lands fronting state parks are of statewide value for public use and access. Commercial clam and geoduck beds and sites uniquely suited to aquaculture are of statewide value to renewable resource use. Harbor areas are of statewide value to water-dependent navigation and commerce. Certain aquatic land habitats and plant and animal populations are of statewide value to recreational and commercial fisheries, wildlife protection, and scientific study.

((+70+)) (71) "Streamway" means stream dependent corridor of single or multiple, wet or dry channel, or channels within which the usual seasonal or stormwater run-off peaks are contained, and within which environment the flora, fauna, soil and topography is dependent on or influenced by the height and velocity of the fluctuating river currents.

((+71+)) (72) "Terminal" means a point of interchange between land and water carriers, such as a pier, wharf, or group of such, equipped with facilities for care and handling of cargo and/or passengers (RCW 79.105.060(21)).

((+72+)) (73) "Thread of stream - thalweg" means the center of the main channel of the stream at the natural and ordinary stage of water.

((+73+)) (74) "Town" means a municipal corporation of the fourth class having not less than ~~((three hundred))~~ 300 inhabitants and not more than ~~((fifteen hundred))~~ 1,500 inhabitants at the time of its organization (RCW 35.01.040).

((+74+)) (75) "Vessel" means a floating structure that is designed primarily for navigation, is normally capable of self propulsion and use as a means of transportation, and meets all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to navigation and safety equipment on vessels, including, but not limited to, registration as a vessel by an appropriate government agency.

((+75+)) (76) "Water-dependent use" means use which cannot logically exist in any location but on the water. Examples include, but are not limited to, waterborne commerce; terminal and transfer facilities; ferry terminals; watercraft sales in conjunction with other water dependent uses; watercraft construction, repair, and maintenance; moorage and launching facilities; aquaculture; log booming; and public fishing piers and parks (RCW 79.105.060(24)).

~~((76))~~ (77) "Waterfront" means a parcel of property with upland characteristics which includes within its boundary, a physical interface with the existing shoreline of a body of water.

~~((77))~~ (78) "Water oriented use" means use which historically has been dependent on a waterfront location, but with existing technology could be located away from the waterfront. Examples include, but are not limited to, wood products manufacturing, watercraft sales, fish processing, petroleum refining, sand and gravel processing, log storage, and houseboats (RCW 79.105.060(25)).

~~((78))~~ (79) "Waterway" means an area platted across aquatic lands or created by a waterway district providing for access between the uplands and open water, or between navigable bodies of water.

~~((79))~~ (80) "Wetted perimeter" means a fluctuating water line which separates submerged river beds from the dry shoreland areas at any given time.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 332-30-138 Commercial finfish net pen aquaculture.** Commercial finfish net pen aquaculture shall not be authorized on state-owned aquatic lands.